
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, March 02, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Terri Peavy 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (CCD) 

CONSENT 

2. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting February 18, 2020. (CCD) 

3. Adopt a resolution making staff appointments to the Personnel Policy Committee: TAPD 

Finance Officer Dara Cornett, Assistant Public Works Director Tracie Lee and Deputy Clerk 

Jenny Narens. (CCD) 

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter into a renewal 

agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for services of two (2) officers assigned 

from the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department for special patrols and enforcement 

operations on Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) 

5. Adopt a Resolution to accept the 2019 Audit Engagement Letter prepared by the accounting 

firm BKD, LLP. (FIN) 

REGULAR 

6. Consider the following action concerning an amendment to the FY2020 Budget:  

Conduct a Public Hearing to allow citizen input regarding amending the FY2020 Budget. 

Adopt a Resolution amending the FY2020 Budget (Resolution No. 2019-45) and the Public 

Works Budget to include the expense for Palomino Drive Drainage Improvements and Ermer 

Dansby Pondexter (EDP) Sports Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms. (PWD) Public 

Works Director Tyler Richards 

7. Adopt an Ordinance amending the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances to accept 

the petition by Thomas and Lisa Looney and Rodney Tefteller to vacate the east 212.09 feet 

of the undeveloped, platted 1200 block of Mitchell Street. (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary 

Beck 



 

The applicant requests an emergency clause.  An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, March 16, 2020 

ADJOURN 

 

2020 City Calendar 

TASD Spring Choral Performance - Tuesday, March 3, 2020 

YMAR Warriors for Christ Crusade - Friday & Saturday, March 27-28, 2020 

Juneteenth Celebration - Saturday, June 27, 2020 

2nd Annual Party in Pink - Thursday, October 15, 2020 

Texarkana Race for the Cure - Saturday, October 17, 2020 

  



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: March 2, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Employee Service Awards: 

Shawn Maxey – Public Works Department – 5 yrs 

Patrick R. Allen – Driver Engineer – 10 yrs 

Angela Hogan (Easley) – Deputy Chief Probation Officer – 25 yrs 

Tammy Cowdrey – TWU – 20 yrs 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting February 18, 

2020. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: March 2, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/a 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Tuesday, February 18, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order. 

Texarkana, Arkansas District Judge Wren Autrey administered the Oath of Office to Ulysses 

Brewer as Ward 4 Director. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Assistant Mayor Linda Teeters, Ward 2 Director 

Laney J. Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 

Director Barbara S. Miner, and Ward 6 Director Terri Peavy.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George Matteson, City 

Clerk Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Barbara Miner. 

CONSENT 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Teeters.  The motion carried and the Mayor declared the Consent Agenda approved.  The items 

approved were: 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting February 3, 2020. (CCD) 

2. Resolution No. 2020-4 appointing Director Ulysses Brewer to the following Boards and 

Commissions to fill the vacancy of Travis Odom’s term: 

Economic Development Committee, Emergency Medical Systems Committee, 

Intergovernmental Advisory Committee, Public Utilities Committee, Plumbing Board of 

Review and Electric Board of Review. (CCD) 

3. Resolution No. 2020-5 authorizing the City Manager to purchase a 2019 Dodge Ram 1500 

Crew Cab for the use of the Fire Marshal from the Arkansas State Vehicle Contracts. (TAFD) 

4. Resolution No. 2020-6 to set the date for a public hearing to be held on March 2, 2020, 

concerning a request for a right-of-way abandonment for the part of the platted undeveloped 

1200 Block of Mitchell Street establishing and retaining utility easements. (PWD-Planning) 

REGULAR 

5. Ordinance No. 1-2020 authorizing the City Manager to purchase a three year Microsoft 

Enterprise License Agreement for licenses used by all departments of the City of Texarkana, 



 

Arkansas in an amount not to exceed the annual fee of $45,912.70. (TWU-IT) IT Manager 

Kevin Davenport 

 Motion to read the ordinance the first time in abbreviated form made by Director Harris, 

Seconded by Assistant Mayor Teeters. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

 Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

 Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in 

abbreviated form made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Miner. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0.  The ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

 Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hollibush, Seconded by Director Miner. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0.  The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested.  An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. 

Motion to approve the emergency clause made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by 

Director Miner. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, 

Director Brewer, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0.  The Mayor declared the emergency clause approved. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

 Director Harris read a statement concerning February as Black History Month. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board entered Executive Session at 6:12 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 6:49 PM. 

No action was taken. 



 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, March 2, 2020. 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Miner, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Miner, Director Peavy. 

The motion carried 7-0.  The meeting adjourned at 6:52 PM. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a resolution making staff appointments to the Personnel Policy 

Committee: TAPD Finance Officer Dara Cornett, Assistant Public 

Works Director Tracie Lee and Deputy Clerk Jenny Narens. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: March 2, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Make staff appointments 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Make staff appointments to the Personnel Policy Committee for the term 

of 1/6/2020---2022. 

TAPD Finance Officer Dara Cornett  

Assistant Public Works Director Tracie Lee 

Deputy Clerk Jenny Narens 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on various boards and commissions; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant positions:  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment is hereby approved:  

 

Board/Commission:  Appointee:    Term: 

Dara Cornett   TAPD Finance Officer  01/06/2020---2022 

Tracie Lee   Assistant Public Works Director 01/06/2020---2022 

Jenny Narens    Deputy Clerk    01/06/2020---2022 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 

 

________________________________ 

                               Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 



PERSONNEL POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

Authorized by Resolution No. 6103 
 

2 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term 
    
Eric Etheridge 
Media Manager 
870-779-4990 

Resolution No. 2017-23 
Appointment 
05/15/2017 

01/06/2017----2019 2 

    
Marian Holder 
Texarkana Arkansas Fire Dept. 
Administrative Assistant 
870-779-4956 

Resolution No. 2017-23 
Appointment 
05/15/2017 

01/06/2017----2019 3 

    
Linda Matthews 
City Manager’s Secretary 
870-779-4952 

Resolution No. 2017-23 
Appointment 
05/15/2017 

01/06/2017----2019 1 

    
Dara Cornett 
Texarkana Arkansas Police Dept. 
Finance Officer 
870-798-3284 

Resolution No. 2018-1 
Reappointment 

01/02/2018 

01/06/2018----2020 3 

    
Tracie Lee 
Assistant Public Works Director  
870-779-1354 

Resolution No. 2018-1 
Reappointment 

01/02/2018 

01/06/2018----2020 3 

    
Jenny Narens 
Deputy City Clerk 
870-779-4917 

Resolution No. 2018-1 
Appointment 
01/02/2018 

01/06/2018----2020 
 

2 

    
Melissa Edwards 
Personnel Administrator 
870-779-4997 

Permanent Term   

    
 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter 

into a renewal agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for 

services of two (2) officers assigned from the Texarkana, Arkansas 

Police Department for special patrols and enforcement operations on 

Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) 

AGENDA DATE: March 2, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Arkansas Police Department 

PREPARED BY: Capt. James Atchley 

REQUEST: Texarkana Housing Authority Contract FY2020 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: This purpose of this agenda item is to renew the FY2020 contract with 

the Texarkana Housing Authority (THA).  Under the terms of the 

contract, the Texarkana Arkansas Police Department (TAPD) assigns 

two officers to conduct special patrols and enforcement operations on 

the properties administered by THA.  In return for these services, THA 

pays the City of Texarkana, Arkansas $130,000.00 for salary/fringe 

purposes.  The Police Department recommends approval of this 1 year 

grant.  Failure to renew would require the City to pay for the 

salary/fringe benefits for two officers out of our General Fund or layoff 

of two officers. 

 

This is a long running grant between the City and THA and benefits the 

residents of the Housing Authority with additional police protection at 

no cost to the City. 

 

There are two file copies that require signatures from the City Manager, 

City Clerk, City Attorney and the Police Chief. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 



RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Staff recommends this be placed on the consent agenda and approved by 

the Board of Directors. 

EXHIBITS: Texarkana Arkansas Housing Authority Contract  

 



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

WHEREAS, the City contracts annually with Texarkana Housing Authority for the 

services of two (2) officers assigned from the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department for 

special patrols and enforcement operations on Housing Authority properties; and 

WHEREAS, Texarkana Housing Authority desires to renew the contract for these 

services and has provided a proposed contract to the City which provides for Texarkana 

Housing Authority to fund salaries in the amount of $130,000.00 for the officers; and 

WHEREAS, the City staff recommends approval of the contract; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager and other City staff, as required, are each 

authorized and directed to execute the contract proposed by Texarkana Housing Authority 

for the services of two (2) police officers at Texarkana Housing Authority.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

























 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to accept the 2019 Audit Engagement Letter 

prepared by the accounting firm BKD, LLP. (FIN) 

AGENDA DATE: March 2, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: This item is to approve a letter of engagement with the firm BKD, LLP 

to conduct the City of Texarkana, Arkansas’ and the Bi-State Justice 

Center’s 2019 Annual Audit and preparation of the Consolidated Annual 

Financial Report. They are experienced in conducting Government 

Audits and are also used by other cities within the state of Arkansas as 

well as other cities throughout the United States. The City Manager and 

Finance Director recommend approving a one-year letter of engagement. 

The one-year engagement is a 3.3% increase from 2018 to 2019, plus an 

additional fee up to $5,000 for the implementation of GASB 84. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $99,000 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $91,000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$8,000 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend that the City Board of Directors 

approve the attached resolution  

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Audit Engagement Letter prepared by the accounting 

firm BKD, LLP.  

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, the firm BKD, LLP, has submitted a letter of engagement to conduct 

annual audits for the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and the Bi-State Justice Center for 2019; 

and 

WHEREAS, BKD, LLP, has experience with conducting such audits and similar 

governmental audits, including audits for other cities within the state of Arkansas and 

throughout the United States; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and Finance Director recommend approving a one-

year engagement with a 3.3% increase from 2018 to 2019, plus an additional fee up to 

$5,000.00 for the implementation of GASB 84; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed expense necessitates a $8,000.00 appropriation to bring 

the total amount budgeted for said audit to $99,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend board approval; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized and directed to enter into a 

letter of engagement with BKD, LLP, under the terms set forth above. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 

 

____________________________ 

                            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

























 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Consider the following action concerning an amendment to the FY2020 Budget:  

A. Conduct a Public Hearing to allow citizen input regarding amending the 

FY2020 Budget. 

B. Adopt a Resolution amending the FY2020 Budget (Resolution No. 2019-

45) and the Public Works Budget to include the expense for Palomino Drive 

Drainage Improvements and Ermer Dansby Pondexter (EDP) Sports 

Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms. (PWD) Public Works Director 

Tyler Richards 

AGENDA DATE: 03/3/2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution to Amend the FY2020 Budget and the Public Works Budget. 

EMERGENCY 

CLAUSE: 

This item will be approved by a resolution; therefore, it will not need an emergency 

clause. 

SUMMARY: The planning figures for the FY2020 Public Works budget must be adjusted to 

include the expense for Palomino Drive Drainage Improvements and EDP Sports 

Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms.  Both projects are 2019 projects that staff 

anticipated completing the end of 2019 unfortunately the weather prevented 

contractors from starting either projects.  As both projects were expected to be 

completed in 2019 the City’s 2020 budget did not allocate funding for either project. 

Public Works 2019 actual fund balance is $1,478,141.00. The 2019 budgeted fund 

balance was $801,392.00.  Which leaves $676,749.00 available to be reallocated to 

the 2020 budget.   

Therefore the 2020 budget will need to be amended to include the funding for both 

projects as listed below. 

From Public Works Fund Balance: 

 $373,577.00  EDP Sports Complex – 201-143-54028-50501 

From the Stormwater Reserve Fund: 

 $ 80,635.48  Drainage Improvements - 201-149-54008-50501 

EXPENSE 

REQUIRED: 

$454,212.48 ($373,577.00 from Public Works Fund Balance & $80,635.48 from 

Stormwater Reserve Fund) 



AMOUNT 

BUDGETED: 

$0.00  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$454,212.48 ($373,577.00 from Public Works Fund Balance & $80,635.48 from 

Stormwater Reserve Fund) 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Resolution 2019-46, Resolution 2019-48, and Resolution 2019-45. 

 

 

  

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, the FY2020 Budget for the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, was approved and 

adopted by Resolution No. 2019-45; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the FY2020 Budget in order to include the expense 

for Palomino Drive Drainage Improvements and Ermer Dansby Pondexter (EDP) Sports Complex 

Concession Stand/Bathrooms which was not completed in 2019 due to weather; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated appropriation required for such installation and, accordingly, 

the necessary budget amendment is $454,212.48 ($373,577.00 from Public Works Fund Balance 

(for EDP Sports Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms) and $80,635.48 from Stormwater 

Reserve Fund (for Palomino Drive drainage improvements)); and   

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the FY2020 Budget and, in particular, that Public Works portion 

thereof, is hereby amended to include an appropriation of $454,212.48 for the above stated 

estimated expenses of installation of Palomino Drive drainage improvements and EDP Sports 

Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms work however, nothing contained herein is deemed to be 

a waiver of the purchasing policy or any requirements therein.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 





1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance amending the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Code of 

Ordinances to accept the petition by Thomas and Lisa Looney and 

Rodney Tefteller to vacate the east 212.09 feet of the undeveloped, 

platted 1200 block of Mitchell Street. (PWD-Planning) City Planner 

Mary Beck 

The applicant requests an emergency clause.  An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: March 2, 2020 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck, City Planner 

REQUEST: Amend the Code to abandon a section of right-of-way. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: The requested section of the undeveloped 80’-0” wide 1200 block of 

Mitchell Street was platted in 1887 as part of KIRBY COLLEGE 

SUBDIVISION. During the last 133 years it has been under-utilized, 

only allowing access for one property owner on the north and light poles 

and sewer lines.  This portion of land is the City’s responsibility to 

maintain.  The property owners have been maintaining the property and 

Mr. Looney would like to construct a fence with a gate to continue to 

maintain the land but to allow his family some use of the property.  If 

the Board abandons its easement for public use of this land, the utilities 

existing would retain easements for access and the land would revert to 

the property owners on the north and south of the abandonment.     

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager, Planning Commission and Staff recommend 

approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance and Memo. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE 

VACATION AND ABANDONMENT OF AN 

UNDEVELOPED RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED AS 

PART OF 1200 MITCHELL STREET, TO THE 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS; FOR 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 
 
WHEREAS, a petition was duly filed with the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, on the 18th of February, 2020, asking that the Board of Directors 

vacate and abandon of an eighty foot (80’) wide unimproved portion of Mitchell Street, 

more specifically described as follows:  

Beginning at the eastern most end of Mitchell Street at the point of 

intersection with the northeast corner of Lot No. 3, Block 1, FOREST 

ACRES ADDITION, thence west 212.09’ to the northwest corner of Lot 

No. 3, Block 1, FOREST ACRES ADDITION, then north 80,’ the width of 

Mitchell Street to the property line of Lot No. 2, Block 49, KIRBY’S 

COLLEGE SUBDIVISION, then east 212.09’ to the end of Mitchell Street 

and thence south to the point of beginning, all in Texarkana, Miller County, 

Arkansas, containing .389 acres (16,967.2 sq. ft.) more or less.     

SAVE AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, all rights to install, occupy, and 

access utilities in such areas are reserved and remain. 

 

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law, the Board of Directors has, at the 

time and place mentioned in said notice, heard all persons desiring to be heard on the 

question and has ascertained that said portions of alley herein above and herein after 

described, have heretofore been dedicated to the public use as an alley herein described; 

have not been actually used by the public for a period of at least five (5) years subsequent 

to the filing of the plats; that all owners of the property abutting upon the portions of said 

alley, respectively, to be vacated have been filed with the Board of Directors their written 

consent to the abandonment; and that public interest and welfare will not be adversely 

affected by the abandonment of said portion of alley; and 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

SECTION 1.  The City of Texarkana, Arkansas, releases, vacates, and abandons 

all its rights, together with the rights of the public generally, in and to the following 

described rights-of-way: 

Beginning at the eastern most end of Mitchell Street at the point of intersection with 

the northeast corner of Lot No. 3, Block 1, FOREST ACRES ADDITION, thence 

west 212.09’ to the northwest corner of Lot No. 3, Block 1, FOREST ACRES 

ADDITION, then north 80,’ the width of Mitchell Street to the property line of Lot 

No. 2, Block 49, KIRBY’S COLLEGE SUBDIVISION, then east 212.09’ to the 

end of Mitchell Street and thence south to the point of beginning, all in Texarkana, 

Miller County, Arkansas, containing .389 acres (16,967.2 sq. ft.) more or less.     

SAVE AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, all rights to install, occupy, and access 

utilities in such areas are reserved and remain. 

(Legal Description by others and not independently verified by preparer) 

 

SECTION 2.  All rights and areas abandoned hereby remain subject to any other 

persons or entities which may claim and interest and, further, without warranty revert and 

shall deemed to be included as a part of the property originally encumbered and, 

specifically:  (i) revert, as to the southern 40.0’ of such area to and are hereafter included 

as a part of Lot No. 3, Block 1, FOREST ACRES ADDITION, and (ii) revert, as to the 

northern 40’ of such area, to and are hereafter included as a part of Lot No. 2, Block 49, 

KIRBY’S COLLEGE SUBDIVISION.    

SECTION 3.  A copy of this ordinance, duly certified by the City Clerk, shall be 

filed in the office of the recorder of Miller County, Arkansas, and recorded in the deed 

records of the county.  

SECTION 4.  This ordinance being necessary for the preservation of the public 

peace, health and safety, and a separate and distinct vote on this emergency clause having 

been taken, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full 

force and effect from and after its passage and approval.     

  



PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

 



 

www.txkusa.org/ar 
  Date: 06-04-2013 

 

 
 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT STREET 71854-6024 
P.O. BOX 2711 – TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

MEMORANDUM 
TO:       Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Manager 

FROM:      Mary L. Beck, City Planner/Historic Preservation Officer 

DATE: February 12, 2020 

SUBJECT: Board of Director’s agenda item for 03-02-2020 meeting. Petition by 
Thomas & Lisa Looney, 1200 Forest Acres Circle, Texarkana, AR 
71854-7753, and Rodney Tefteller, 2405 Mitchell Street, Texarkana, AR 
71854-7573 to abandon a portion of the dedicated, unimproved 80’-0” 
wide Mitchell Street.   

LEGAL  

DESCRIPTION: The east 212.09’ of 80’-0” wide undeveloped Mitchell Street abutting Lot 
3, Block 1, FOREST ACRES ADDITION, Texarkana, Miller County, 
Arkansas, on the south side and a portion of Lot 2, Block 49, KIRBY’S 
COLLEGE SUBDIVISION, Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas, on the 
north side, and abutting SPENCER SUBDIVISION containing .389 acres 
(16,967.2 sq. ft.) more or less 

 
REASON FOR REQUEST: 
 
 The 80'-0" of undeveloped ROW was originally platted in 1887 and is 

only partially utilized for access to Lot, 2 Block 49, KIRBY COLLEGE 
and has some utilities located in it.  The petitioners wish to make better 
use of the under-utilized property to expand their yards and agree to 
maintain it for the betterment of their property and neighborhood.     

 
EXISTING LAND USES: 
 
 Site:      Dedicated, unimproved 80’-0” ROW 
 North: Petitioner Tefteller 
 South:   Petitioner Looney 
 East: Rear of single-lot Spencer Subdivision  
 West: West end of undeveloped Mitchell Street 
 
EXISTING ZONING: 
  

Site:      R-2 single-family residential 

 North: R-2 single-family residential 
 South:   R-2 single-family residential 
 East: R-2 single-family residential 



 

www.txkusa.org/ar 
  Date: 06-04-2013 

 West: R-2 single-family residential 
 
COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 Part of this block of undeveloped Mitchell Street, platted in 1887 

has been utilized as access to property on the north side and has 
utility lines.  Because the width of the ROW is 80’ is adequate for 
additional use and because much of the maintenance of this wide 
ROW has been taken on by the adjacent property owners on the 
east end of the ROW, and because the City has no plans to 
construct the street nor is it a part of any of the City's TUTS long-
range transportation planning through the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO), and utility easements have been retained for 
existing lines, there appear to be no conflicts to abandonment. 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
 The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated 14-301-301 to 14-301-

306 grants property owners owning property containing a utility 
easement the right to petition the City Board of Directors to 
abandon all or part of the street ROW provided it does not 
contain any existing services or is not needed for future 
expansion.  The City staff received a petition signed by both 
adjacent property owners (attached).  The five utility companies 
have been contacted with the following responses: 
 
80'-0' Right-of-Way – East 212.09’ of undeveloped Mitchell 
Street. 
 

 
1. TWU – The Utility does not oppose the abandonment of 

this section of ROW if a twenty-foot (20’) utility easement 
is retained over the sanitary sewer mains shown. The 
size and location of the existing sanitary sewer mains 
have not been field verified. The developer’s 
representative shall field verify the size and location of 
the existing utilities before designing or constructing 
extensions of the system. Gary Smith, Operations and 
Maintenance Supervisor.   (Letter dated 01-23-2020).   
 

2. CenterPoint Energy - "….we have no issue with the 
abandonment.”  Brandon Brooks, Operations Supervisor.   
(Email dated 01-31-2020). 

 
3. AEP – Swepco – “Yes 20’ would be fine, 10’ on either 

side of the pole.”  (in response to question whether 
Swepco would consider less than the full 80’ ROW for the 
utility usage). Comment by Deandra D. Perez, AEP 
Swepco Engineer Assoc. (email dated Jan. 27, 2020) 

 
4. CableONE/Sparklight – “That will be fine” (in response 

to question of agreeing with AEP Swepco request to 20’ 
easement, 10’ on each side of their line/equipment). 



 

www.txkusa.org/ar 
  Date: 06-04-2013 

Donald (Rick) Syphers, (email dated 1-30-2020) 
 

5. Windstream Communications - "We don’t have any 
cable buried, but we do have service drops on the power 
poles.  So, we will need to be included in that easement 
request. (Email, Chris Jackson – (reference to AEP-
Swepco easement request.  email dated 02-03-2020). 

 
  
OPPOSITION: No opposition to date following publication of a legal notice 

January 26, 2020 in the Texarkana Gazette.  . 
 
ADDITIONAL ACTION BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
 Once the Planning Commission makes its recommendation on 

February 11th, the City Board of Directors could pass a resolution on 
February 18, 2020 to set a date for a hearing on March 2, 2020, for 
a required public hearing on the proposed ROW abandonment as 
required by Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated.  Once the City 
Clerk has advertised the public hearing in the newspaper and no 
less than fifteen (15) days have passed, the City Board of Directors 
will conduct the public hearing and approve or deny the ordinance 
required to abandon the section of the dedicated Right-of-Way.  
Every ordinance is required to be read three times before adoption.  
These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the 
second and third meetings after the first reading of the ordinance. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
.    
 The Planning Commission met on February 11, 2020 to consider 

the request and make a recommendation.  On a motion by Mr. 
Adger Smith, seconded by Dr. Randall Hickerson, the Planning 
Commission certifies a recommendation for approval by a roll call 
vote of 5-0 with one absent and one who is a next door neighbor 
abstained, in order to abandon a portion of Mitchell street as 
described here.   
 
Chairman Thomas Yes 
Vice-Chair Dunn Absent 
Commissioner Coker Abstained 
Commissioner Dupree Yes 
Commissioner Hickerson Yes 
Commissioner Neal Yes 
Commissioner Smith Yes 

 

 
BOARD ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
 The Board action requested is as follows: 

 
1. On February 18, 2020 consider a resolution to set the date for 

a required public hearing. 
 
2. On March 2, 2020 Consider adopting an ordinance 



 

www.txkusa.org/ar 
  Date: 06-04-2013 

abandoning a portion of an undeveloped street. 
 
3. An emergency clause is requested. 

 
Enclosures:   
 
MLB:dks 

 















Forest 
Street

Mitchell 
ROW

Country 
Club 
Road

Fairview 
Street

Thomas 
Looney’s 
residence



Sewer line’
Thomas Looney’s 
proposed fence 

location

Power 
line & 
poles

2nd sewer line

Tefteller
residence

Looney 
residence

Coker 
residence

SPENCER 
SUBDIVISION

KIRBY 
COLLEGE 
Block 49

FOREST ACRES


















	Top
	1. Employee Service Awards
	03022020_ccd_employee service awards

	2. Approval of the minutes
	03022020_ccd_minutes
	item_2_02182020_minutes

	3. Personnel Policy
	03022020_ccd_personnel policy
	item_3_Resolution_appointments
	item_3_03022020_PPC

	4. TAPD Housing Authority
	03022020_TAPD_Housing Authority
	item_4_Resolution_Texarkana Housing Authority Contract FY 2020
	03022020_tapd_housing contract

	5. 2019 Audit Engagement Letter
	item_5_03022020_2019 Audit Engagement Letter
	item_5_Resolution_2019 Audit Engagement Letter
	item_5_Audit Letter

	6. Adopt a Resolution amending the FY2020 Budget (Resolution No. 2019-45) and the Public Works Budget to include the expense for Palomino Drive Drainage Improvements and EDP Sports Complex Concession Stand/Bathrooms. (PWD)
	item_6_03022020_FY 2020 Budget
	item_6_Resolution_FY2020 Budget rev 1
	item_6_03022020_FY 2020 Budget_2019-45
	2019-46
	2019-48

	7. 03022020_pw_pl_ordinance_petition_abandonment_row_mitchell_street
	item_7_03022020_row_abandonment_mitchell
	item_7_ordinance_amend right of way
	CM-Memo - ROW ABANDONMENT Thomas Looney Mitchell Street
	scanned petition
	copies of deeds
	copies of deeds-2
	map_abandon row Mitchell St
	utility comments to attach

	Bottom

